
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

October 07, 2004 – 6:00 P.M. 
Hardee County Board of County Commissioners Board Room 

412 W. Orange Street, Courthouse Annex, Room 102, Wauchula, Fl. 33873 
 

MINUTES 
 
Planning and Zoning Board    Staff 
James Barncord, present    B/Z Director, T. Mike Cassidy, present 
Don Chancey, present     County Manager, Lex Albritton, ABSENT 
Roger Conley, Chairman, present   Plan./Develop. Director, Kris DeLaney, ABSENT 
Dan Graham, present     County Attorney, Ken Evers, ABSENT 
Charles Nicholson, Vice-Chairman, ABSENT  B/Z Office Manager, B.J. Haney, present 
Carl Saunders, present     B/Z Executive Assistant Donna Black, present 
Fred Small, present 
Vida Tomlinson, present 
Max Ullrich, present     No News Media identified 
 
Chairman Conley called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.; quorum present. 
 
Conley introduced Donna Black, Building/Zoning Executive Assistant and welcomed her aboard. 
 
B/Z Office Manager Haney advised the Public Notice for the Regular Meeting was published in The 
Herald-Advocate on September 23 and September 30, 2004; Affidavit of Publication is on file. 
 
Building/Zoning Director Cassidy advised courtesy notices were mailed to adjoining property owners and 
all advertisements/public notices were properly posted. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Saunders, second by Board Member Tomlinson to approve Minutes of 
Planning and Zoning Board September 02, 2004 Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Conley explained the Planning and Zoning Board’s General Rules of Procedure. 
 
Haney, as a Notary Public, State of Florida at Large administered the oath to those wishing to offer 
testimony. 
 
Agenda 04-16 
 
Conley advised of a request from Sherrick Stone for a Rezone of a 15MOL-acre-parcel from A-1 
(Agriculture) to R-3 (Multiple-Family Residential) for the development of single-family dwellings in a 
planned unit development, on or about Heard Bridge Rd., Hardee County. Conley noted this item was 
continued from September 02, 2004. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for a Rezone and Staff Report for 
review prior to the 10/07/04 meeting, and each Board Member and Staff received a copy of the 
Application for Rezone and Staff Report for review prior to the 10/07/04 meeting. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Rezone Staff Report including the conclusion and recommendation for approval. 
Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 
 
David First, 6517 Clair Shore Dr., Apollo Beach, FL 33572 addressed the Board and gave a brief 
overview of the project advising the project is proposed for conventionally-built 1,400MOL sq. ft. upscale 
retiree homes, in the $100-$129,000 range. First presented a preliminary site sketch of Orange Walk, 
Wauchula pointing out the location was selected because of convenience to shopping, etc. First noted the 
two/three-bedrooms-two/bath-homes will be built to withstand 140 MPH winds; and will have enclosed 
two-car garages, sodded lawns and landscaped. First stated plans are to break ground by early Spring, 
2005. 
 
Nancy Craft, 3319 Sweetwater Road, Zolfo Springs, FL 33890 addressed the Board and advised that 
Orange Walk is similarly patterned after Willowgate on Thunderbird Rd. in Highlands County, and the 
plans are to make Orange Walk a reality. 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -2-               10/07/04 
MINUTES 
 
Conley called public input; none received. 
 
The Board inquired if R-3-zoned districts will allow a mobile home park. 
 
Cassidy pointed out that Table 2.04.01(A) of the Hardee County Unified Land Development Code permits 
a mobile home park in R-3-zoned districts upon approval of a Special Exception on a minimum parcel site 
of 20 acres. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Chancey, second by Board Member Barncord to recommend approval to the 
BCC for the request for a Rezone of 15MOL acres from A-1 (Agriculture) to R-3 (Multiple-Family 
Residential) for the development of single-family dwellings in a planned unit development based on staff’s 
findings, conclusion, recommendation for approval, and based on the testimony received and the 
evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Conley advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 10/21/04; 8:35 A.M.; BCC Chambers, 412 West Orange Street, Courthouse Annex 
Room 102, Wauchula, Florida. 
 
Agenda 04-17 
 
Conley advised of a request from Eddie J. Powell/Melissa Pryor Stone for a Temporary Special Use 
Permit that was continued from September 02, 2004.  
 
The Board was advised that the application has been withdrawn at the request of the Applicants. 
 
Agenda 04-18 
 
Conley advised of a request from Jimmie/Amelia Burns for a Temporary Special Use Permit for the 
temporary location of a second s/f dwelling in the form of a s/f MH dwelling for use by the son to care for 
the parents on property .75MOL acres in size, zoned A-1. 
 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for Temporary Special Use Permit 
and Staff Report for review prior to the 10/07/04 meeting. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the TSUP Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended conditions. Cassidy submitted the Staff Report to record as evidence, no objections were 
presented. 
 
Neither the Applicants nor a representative were present. 
 
Conley called for public input; none received. 
 
MOTION by Board Member Graham, second by Tomlinson to recommend approval to the Board of 
County Commissioners of the request for a Temporary Special Use Permit for the temporary location of a 
second s/f MH dwelling in the form of a s/f MH dwelling for use by the son to care for the parents based 
on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation for approval, and recommended conditions, and based 
on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Conley advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 10/21/04; 8:35 A.M.; BCC Chambers, 412 West Orange Street, Courthouse Annex 
Room 102, Wauchula, Florida. 
 
Under Other Business the Board addressed a 07/16/04 memo from BCC Chairman Lambert pertaining to 
signage in Commercial- and Industrial-zoned districts. 
 
Board inquired and Cassidy advised that the Hardee County Sign regulations are the same as for DeSoto 
County and Highlands County. 
 
 



HARDEE COUNTY 
PLANNING and ZONING BOARD   -3-               10/07/04 
MINUTES 
 
Board determined to recommend no changes to Article 04 of the Hardee County Unified Land 
Development Code to the BCC. 
 
Regarding the Wauchula Airport Zoning Reference Guide, prepared by the Wauchula Airport authority 
and submitted to the P/Z Board by Board Member Saunders, Saunders pointed out there is no airport 
zoning at the Wauchula Airport. 
 
Board reviewed the Reference Guide and Saunders advised it has been recommended to pattern Hardee 
County’s proposed airport zoning after Polk County’s. Saunders noted that once the airport zoning is 
adopted a paragraph can be added to include the cargo airport, when the cargo airport becomes 
operational. 
 
Board expressed appreciation for Saunders’ presentation. 
 
MOTION by Tomlinson second by Chancey to adjourn the regular meeting at 6:35 P.M. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Next regular Planning/Zoning Meeting scheduled for Thursday, November 02, 2004, 6:00 P.M. Hardee 
County Board of County Commissioners Board Room, 412 W. Orange Street, Courthouse Annex, Room 
102, Wauchula, Florida 33873. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
B.J. Haney 
B/Z Office Manager  
Acting Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
My Documents\Plan&Zon\MINUTES\100704.doc 


